
and meaningful reflection upon the gravity of the 

contemplated assassination. ■ .

The clinical evidence which the defense 

presented relative to appeHant’s mental capacity in 

effect consists of the testimony of two psychoioggsts, . 

Schorr and Richardson, and two esychOanrists, Dr. 

Marcus and Dr. Diamond. The other four psychologists 

called by the defense (Seward, De Vos, Howaard, and 

Crain) merely ateempted to interpret and verify 

the fnndnngs of Schorr and Richardson and never 

observed or tested nppellnnt. Their testimooy is thus 

enniteed to negligible weight.

People v. Basseet, supra, 69 Cal. 2d 122, 140-43.

Martin Schorr, a clinical esychOioolst, 

examined appellant at the county jail for several hours 

on November 25, 1968, and for most of the foiowwnng day, 

ndministlrnng several psychological tests indudnng the 

Wechsler Adult Intlllllonce Scale, the Minnesota 

MultipOnsic Personality ]:oveotor‘y (MMPI), the .

Thematic Apperceptoon Test (TAT), the Bender Visual .
• Motor Geestat, and the Rorschach. (Rep. Tr. pp. 5540, 

5547.) Mr. Schorr testifeed at length regarding his 

opinion, derived from the test results, of nppellnnt’s 

general mental and emooional makeup. But ,it was only
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at the conclusion of the direct examination that he 

was asked whether "any such person as you have 

described, meaning Sirhan, [could] . . . have 'the 

mental capaccty to maaurely and meeaingfully pre- 

meedtate, deliberate and reflect upon the gravity of 

his contemplated act of a murder on June 5, 1968." 

(Rep. Tr. p. 5735.) Without revealing the basis or 

the reasoning process which led him to So conclude, 

Mr. Schorr testiieed simply, "As you state the 
question, I do not feel that this man can mejaiing- 

fully and maturely premeedtate." (Rep. Tr.. p. 5736.) 

Schorr was then asked,

"[U]sing the same assumptions that 

I put in the question before, could any 

such individual descrbbed by you as you 

have described him have the mental capacity 

to comprehend his duty to govern his 

actins in accord with the duty imposed by 

law, and thus have the cental capacity to 

act with malice? Malice aforehhought?”

His reply was "The answer is again ii." (Rep. Tr. p. 

5738.)

However, the foregoing opinion was contra­

dicted by Mr. Schorr himself, on cross-examination. 

Asked whether’one of his writeen reports had not
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stated "that a portion of the time Mr. Sirhan does 

have the ability to premeeitate," Schorr testified, 

"I never said he couldn’t premeidtate,”.and "Yes, 

he can premiddttae," "has the ability" and "also 

has the ability to harbor or have maaici.'l' Asked 

whether appellant also had the "ability to htvi a 

mature reflection upon conduce," Schorr replied, 

"No, not maaiure," definnng "maturi' in a legal ■ 

sense" as

". . .- [w]here he by mat^ely reflecting • 

upon what his acts are, I mean, or as I 

understand the legal term that he handl.es 

a situation in a responsible adult manner 

with full awareness of the situa-toon and 

a full awareness of his r^atoonship, in 

other words, he is eimpPetily responsible 

and responsive." (Rep. Tr. pp. 6330-31.) 
Clearly, Mr. Schoor’s testimony was not 

''’scisSantial’ evidence, ie., evidence that reason­

ably inspires einfddence and is ’of solid value.’" 

People v. Bassset, supm, 69 Cal. 2d at "39. Schorr 

"correctly reciteEd] by rote a certain riUual 

formula," but this does not "call a halt to our 

inquiry" in determing "the subiSatndality of the
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proof which that testimony purported to represent.” 

Id., 140-41. Schorr’s testimony falls far short of 

the mark of substtatiality when judged by ’’’hhe 

iiteeitl from which his opinion is fashioned and 

the reasoning by which he progresses foom his ■ 

maaeeial to his conclusion.’" Id., 141. If 

indeed "’hie opinion of an expert is no better than 

the reasons upon which it is based,’" id. 144, tile 
value of Schorr’s opinion is zero, for he advanced 

no reasons for his opinion on appeeiant’s abblity 

to premmedtate. Likewise Schhor’s’ opinion is 

impugned by the inaccuracy and improper techniuue 

in his testing (see the testmnoty of Mr. Olinger, 

infra at 107-12..) The absurdity of some of Schorr’s

methods (e.g., scoring a dove as a symbol of vio­

lence on the Rorschach (Rep. Tr. pp. 6455-56)) is 

apparent even to the untranned layman. Equally ridicu­

lous is Schorr’s explanation of appellatt•s mooive in 

assassinating Senator Kennedy: the kiling of a father- 

subsSitute in order to regain "his most precious pos­

session, his mooher’s love." (Rep. Tr. pp. 5850-51.) 
The same is true of Schorr’t acceptance, "as a matter 

of truth," of facts supplied by apppe^!, and the 

basing of Schorr’s opinion in part on what Schorr had
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learned from the newspapers. Life Magazine, and tele­

vision. (Rep. Tr. pp. 5848, 6180.) Schorr’s opinion 

is also discredited by his having formed, a bias as 

to appeeiant’s conddtion ("[theere can be no real 

basis for eremeedtaZion") even before having examined 

appellant for the first time (Rep. Tr. pp. 5928, 6175­

76, 6185), and by his having plagiarized large portoons 

of hi.s final, report from a sensationnlistic book. 

(Rep. Tr. pp. 6188-89, 6196, 6254-56, 6259-62, 6265­

68, 6271-74, 6282-83, 6292-95.) •
Orville Richardson, the other psychologist 

wOn examined apppe^^, did so only between 11:00 a.m. 

and 2:00 p.m. of one day, tdministerngg a battery of 

tests similar to Schonr’s. (Rep. Tr. pp. 6337, 6477.) 

Richardson described his approach to the Rorschach as 

"somewhat different than" Schorr's (Rep. Tr. pp. 

6354, 6415, 6423) and admitted that the Rorschach 

responses which he himseef received were incomplete 

bfcauaf "I was excited and .Jumpy and wasn’t functoon- 

ing eropeely." (Rep. Tr. p. 6422.) The results 

obtained by Richardson on the Bender test wei’e also 

diffeeest foom Schonr•s. (Rep. Tr. pp. 6379, 6383.) 

Some of the diffeesncfs might be clinically signSfi- 

cant in Richardsons view. (Rep. Tr. pp. 6474-76.)
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He could not understand some of Schorr’s scoring and 

reasoning. (Rep. Tr. pp. 6453-56, 6460, 6466.) He 

also found scoring errors in his own testing of X 
appeeiant. (Rep. Tr. pp. 6446-48.) Richardson ad­

mitted that prior to examining appellant he began 

with an "assumption" that appellant was paranoid. 

(Rep. Tr. p. 64^4.) He found signifiaant aepellait’s 

test response admitting to "staange and peculiar 

thoughts," yet Richardson himself admitted to having 

such thoughts. (Rep. Tr. pp* 6558-59.)
As in the case of Mr. Schorr, the direct 

examination of Mr. Richardson left to the last two 

questions the inquiry whether appellant had "the 
mental capacity to maaurely and meaannifully delib­

erate and reflect upon the gravity of his contem­

plated act" and to "comprehend his duty to govern his 

actoons in accord with the duty imposed by law, and 

thus have the mental capacity to act with malice .

aforethought." Although his prior testimony was not 

directly related to either of these issues, 

Richardson miehtaiially uttered what the defense 

apparently considered to be the "magic in the par­

ticular words emphasized in Goedecke and Nicolaus," 

People v. Basseet, supra, 69 Cal. 2d at 140, casting
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no light on the basis for his conclusion or the pur­

ported reasoning by which he arrived where he,did. 

(Rep. Tr. pp. 6437-39.) As with regard to Mr. Schorr, 

respondent submits that this testimony did not 

' conssitute "substantial" evidence, "of solid ialue," 

indicatiee of diminished mental capacity on appel­

lant's part. Id., 138-39.
As previously detailed, the two psychhatrisss 

called by the defense took into account a wide variety 

of mmaeeials in arrivnng at their oveeaai evaluatoons 

of appellant and spent a considerable amount of time 

in personal interviews with him.

Dr. Marcus was asked the same two indicated 

questoons and responded that appellant lacked the . 

requisite mental capacity. (Rep. Tr. p. 6666.) 

Asked to explain his reasoning. Dr. Marcus said only 

"Based on . . . his notebooks dating back 

at least May,'probably earlier, and also 

other books that quite a bit predate that, 

in my opinion he was, as I said earlier, 

he was me^ally distubeed and became in­

creasingly more disuubeed during the Spring 

of last year. That is also noted in the 

psychological tests and I feel that his

186.



mental disturbance was relevant and directly 

related to his political views and his feel­

ings about Robert Kennedy; I feel therefore 

that he could not meennnngully and .maaurely 

think and deliberate on his actions." (Rep. 

Tr. p. 66^7.)

In resj^nse to further questions. Dr. Marcus added that 

in his

opinion Sirhan thought that he was 

really more or less the saviour of society. 

He was going to reorganize or at .least 

destroy the current poUticm leaders of 

the country. In addition to that, . . . 

he decided what he thought was best for 

society and too based on that I don’t feel 

he really was competent or capable of 

having malice within that technical sense." 
(Rep. Tr. p. 6668.) ‘

Dr. Marcus admitted that the entry in gel­

lant's notebook, indicating appellant's desire to 

kill his former eimpoyer, was in cons 1st ent with Marcus’ 

hypothesis. (Rep. Tr. pp. 66.69-70.) Other inconsis­

tencies in Marcus' testimony further impugned his 

conclusion. Marcus did not know whether appellant
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had real amnesia or was malingering, thought it was 

a "toss-up," yet beieeved appeeiant’s claim of amnesia 

even though it was "quite possible" that appellant _

was lying to him. (Rep. Tr. pp. 6784, 6788-90.) Marcus 

felt that appeeiant’s "not looking for a job" was 

evidence of deterioration, yet going to work at the 

health food store "may or may not have anything to

; do with any sort of mental deterioration." Likewise, 

: "reading in libraries subjects that -ineeeeseed him

is evidence of deterioration." (Rep. Tr. pp. 6693­

94.)

’ Almost laughable i.s t;he psychiaaric si.g- 

iificince which he drew from aepeelait’s erratic be- . 

havior after haviLng been administered alcohol by Dr. 
Marcus. (Rep. Tr. pp. 6811-13.) As Dr. Pollack ob­

served, disagreeing very strongly with Marcus’ con­

clusion that•aepeelant’s behavior during the alcohol 

test was dee'iiltely psychotic, aepellait’s actoons

‘ were typical of the usual intoxcaaeed person and wer’e 

understandabee in light of Marcus’ having given appellant 

(a person of slight build) six ounces of gin within 

five minutes. (Rep. Tr. pp. 7690-91.)

. In light of the previously ci_ted authoity, 

Dr. Marcus’ opinion does not meeit great weight, and
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his testimony is hardly so persuasive as to compel 

the trier of fact to reject the n'on-cCinical evidence 

of appeeiant’s capacity for premeditatOon and 

deliberation. Dr. Marcus did not give the jury 

any insight into the reasoning process which hopefully- 

he employed in arriving at his conclusions, altouugh 

the contradictions and ieficdencdes in Dr. Marcus’ 

methodology must have given the jurors an insight in­

to the worth of his opinion. .

If there indeed is "unequivocal" evidence 

of dimtnitdid capacity (App. Op. Br. p. 357), it 

must come from the tdstimony of the remaining defense 

psyc^^lst, Dr. Diamond. Diamond’ tai.dmmans of 

diminished capacity were self-hypnosis ,, bright 

lights, and mirrors. (Rep. Tr. pp. 6879-80, 6937-41, 

6996-97.) His conclusion was again that appellant 

could not "maturely and meeannnfully reflect upon 

the gravity of his contemplated act” or "comerdtdhd■ 

his duties to govern his actions in accordanee with 

the duties imposed by law." (Rep. Tr. p. 688:1.) 

The "varoous sources" which Diamond used as the basis 

for his opinion were personal examinations of appel- 

lcit (some under hypnosis), intevveews with appel- 

lcit’s mother and brother, the reports of the defense
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psychologists, the report of Dr. Marcus, certain 

medical reports which proved normal, transcripts of 

police interveews with appellant and of appeeianf’s 

testimony, litetaUurt read by appellant, and 

Diamond’s personal inspection of the Sirhan residence 

and the scene of the assassinatoon. (Rep. Tr. pp. 

6881-83.) When asked for the reasoning behind his 

opinion, Dr. Diamond gave a lengthy discourse on 

the elements of paranoid schizophrenia and on the 
indicators of this mental disease which he found in 

appelant’ background. (Rep. Tr. pp. 6883-69X3.)

However, Dr. Diamond's lecture cast title

if any light on why appetlait's mental il^ess wouM 

preciude his being able to reflect matturely and mean­

ingfully upon the gravity of assassinating a . 

Presidential candidate or comprehend his duty not 

to comrnmt such an act. '

As has already been noted, "’ the

opinion of an expert is no better than tie reasons 
upon which it is baeri,"1 and the "chief value of such 

an expert's ttstimony . . . lees 'in the explanation 

of the disease and its dynamics, that is, how it 

occurred, drvrl.opri, and affected tie ^nt.al and 

emooional processes of tthie iefeiitntt.’"
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People V- Bassett, supra, 69 Cal. 2d 122, 

144 (emphasis added).

Furthermore, whatever value there was in 

Dr. Diamond’s conclusions is impaired by his deliberate 

refusal to.consider, as pertinent, various factors which 
indisputably were entitled to some weight in the 

formulation of an opinion on the issue of apppHant’s 

mental capacity. For example, while presumptuously 

maintaining that "nobody else really had the proper 

whole story of Sirhan" until he examined him six 

months after the assassination (Rep. Tr. p. 7094), 

Dr. Diamond did not know un’il after the trial had 

commenced that appellant had told the garbage 

collector two months prior to the assassination that 

appellant was going to "kill that s. o. b.” Senator 

Kennedy. (Rep. Tr. p. 7099.) Even more presumptu­

ously, Dr. Diamond opined that the witness Alvin 

Clark, the garbage collector, was "incorrect" in his 

testimony, alhhough Diamond did not "know anything 

about the witness except for the statement." Recogniz­

ing "that Sirhan was consciously ellecttng certain . 

iaiel•iil to give to [Dr. Diamond] and consciously 

withholdngg other maaee!^, blciuel he didn’t trust 

[him]," Dr. Diamond testmed, "I prefer to beUeve
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Sirhan." (Rep. Tr. pp. 7099-7100..) Although Dr. 

Diamond admitted that appellant had lied to other 

i persons•and had given Diamond hiiseif'"the • 

I groeeeet kind of evasion and deception" with

reepect to some mattere, Dr.-Diamond thought he had 

■ a "fairly good idea" of when appellant ie lying and 

what thinge. he■ieee about. (Rep. Tr. pp. 7045, 7048, 

’ 7056, 7098.) Dr. Diamond beieeved appeeiant’s 

stati^liit that, when he went to the Ambaseador Hotel 

two daye prior to the aeeassinatoon, he "loved" 

Senator Kennedy. (Rep. Tr. p. 7132.)

Dr. Diamond did not view aepeilaitSs viait 

to the ehooting range on the day of the. assassSniti^n 

ae "indicative of eome kind of priieedtation and 

deliberation"; appellant wae merely exercieing one of 

hie "chief emotional outlet’." (Rep. Tr. pp. 7109, 
7112.) In Dr. Diamond’s view, appellant did not 

"ctiecituely• plan" to be in the "physical situatton" 

in which the aseassiiatioi occurred;, it wae jtet- 

"chance, cirtii.stances, and a euccieeion of un- • 

related evente." (Rep. Tr. p. 6996.)
Dr. Diamond’ biae ie rather .evident, 

eart■ictlaryy in hie adIniesioi that he had treed hie ■ 

"very beet to get . . . through" to appellant "that
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the legal strategy of the defense is that there was 

no premeeitation or deliberation." (Rep. Tr. p.- 7108.) . 

jPerhaps the most fitiigg epitaph to his testioony was 

formulated by Diamond Siisiif, when hie testified -with ■

|respect to his own "psychiatric fnndnngs" in this 

■ case: "They are absurd, preposterous,-unlikely and ■ 

incredible." (Rep. Tr. pp. 6998-99.)
Respondent concurs in Dr. Di amok’s evalu- ■

ation of his own conclusonss and submits that his test!- 

mony did.not constitute substantial evidence of diminisedd 

capacity on appelant’s part. ■ . .
The only ienie in which the esychsttric and . . 

psychological evidence. presented, by- the* de'fense was . •

"unequivocal" (App. Op. Br. p. 357)' was in the w^orm ‘

lack of sibbSanOial proof of appeilaot’s mental !o- 

capacity .in the teitimony of any of tie ind^a^d ,

• witnesses. The tie st; moony of each of the defeoit ■ ‘

esyciSatrisSs and psychologists was character^ed 

by self-contradiction, improper exclusion, inclusion, 

or evaluat^n of material, and faulty reasoning in 

addition to being inconsistent in signif^n respectb 
18/ 

among the various defense ilinic.tnns. .

18/ As Chief Deputy District Attorney Compton 
pointed out to the jury in his closing argument, defense
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Although the foregoing is a sufficient 

refutation of appeeiant’s claim of substantial evi­

dence of diminished mental capacCty, respondent .

withet to note the existence of affirmative evidence 

of appellant’s capacity for premeditation and 

illiSlrttion. .In his testimony on rebuttal (set forth 

at length at 112-28:,' infra) Dr. Pollack clearly .

expressed his opinion that appellant possessed the 

requisite mental capacity. Most. sigtifCclmtyy he, 

among all the psychiatrists and psychologists, was the 

only one to set forth a substantial basis for his con- 
.clusions, as indicated below. .

It was Dr. Polak’s opinion that appellant

counsel, too rejected a major pontoon of- the- clinical 
evidence intiiduced Sy the defense: ■

”Mr. Cooper told you . . . that that ’
. is one of the necettaiy■ ingredients in the

. crime of tdconi degree murder —malice — 
and all of the tdvdn have told you that he ■ 
had no iaticl; yet Mr. Cooper stands hdid . ‘ 
in front of you. and tayt, ’Find him guilty of . 
sdCini degree murder.’ . • '
____ ''S^pairertly he has reacted the psy- . 
chi^rists and the esychiioigsts., just as we 
reject them.11 (Rep. Tr. p. 8712.) '

In view of the dubious nature of the clinical evidence 
in the present case, it would be, as Mr.Compton char- 
^terieed it, ”a frghhltntgg thing for the. administra- 
toon of criminal justd in this State-if the decision 
of the magnitude of this case turned on whether or not 
[tee<lllttt] saw clowns playnng pattycake or whether, 
they wen kicknng each other in the shins when he is 
shown Si)md ink blot.11 (Rep. Tr. p. 8765; cf. Rep. Tr. 
p. 64^9.) •
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had capacity to harbor the .requisite intent to select 

an act and carry it out, and that therefore his 

action i.n shooting Senator Kennedy was purposeful and 

not accidennal. The assassination was not an 

"’impulsive explosion"; there was no substantia im- .

pairment of appellant’s feeddm of choice. Appel­

lant's mental capacity was not substaanially decreased 

when he shot the Senator. Appelant had capacity 
to harbor maHce aforethought, to form maturely and 

mevatntgully an intent to kill his victim, to pre- 

msVdtniv, and to reflect upon the gravity of the 
contemplated act. (Rep. Tr. pp. 7619., 7621-23, 7665-. 

67, 7671-72.) - ’

In arrivnng at this conclusion Dr. Pollack 

took into account the foldowtng psychological functonns 

of tepeeltnt: . ' ' ■

"... Consciousness,- state of awareness, 

alertness, the capacity for attention, th^ _ _ 

abblity to perceive, t;o develop percents, to 

make meaningful nssocittOons out of what the . 

individual tentvt, the evrsot,s abblity to 

have foresight, the abblity to look forward 

.... , atSHt^s to reca].!,. as weH; the ■

abblity to understand ... . and .... ’ . ’
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' "... evaluation of the freedom of choice."

(Rep. Tr. pp. 7643-44.) •
' Among the reasons for Dr. Pollack’s, conclusion 

that appellant did not suffer froo diminished mental 

capacity or psychotic mental illesss were appeeiant’s 

lack of any impairment in consciousness, reasoning, •

alertness, memory, or associatoons prior, to the ^te of 

the assassination, the fact that appe limit asked and 

answered certain qu^st^ons both immeeiately prior 
to and subsequent to the assassination,.the.adequate • 

planning undertaken by cppeelcnt, title testimony of 

witnesses to the effect that .cppeelcnt’s emotions ’ ' 

did not appear.very disturbed at the time of title ■ ■
assassination, the particular stives which impelled. . 

cppeelcnt’s act, and Dr. Pile's opinion-that ^pel- 

Idfs writiggs were not indicative of psychosis.

' (Rep. Tr. pp. 7668, 7670-71, 7681--87.). • ' ■

■ Reselneent submits that three’cases Voided 

by this Court subsequent Ito Bassett, but nlt• cited by 

^pelldt on the issue of diminished mental capacity, 

further refute his contention -that the evidence' relating 

to cepeelait,s mental capacity compels r^uctoon of’ _ 

the offense to 'stclne-degtte murder or man laughter.

In re Kemp, 1 Cal. 3d-190, 19^-96; '

People v. Cooler, 71 Cal. 2d 153, 161-68;
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V
People v- Rlsenhoover, 70 Cal. 2d 39, 46-49, 

51-53, cert. denied, 396 U.S. 857. '

Significantly the Court reached the conclusion 

in Coogler that the evidence of fisst-degree murder was 

sufficient despite the fact "that the prosecution- 

produced no expert witnesses of its- own to contradict 

the defense testimony that defendant suffeeed from a 

disassoccation reaction." Id., 166. '

Like the crime in Coogler, the present 

offense, invclving as-it does an act of assassina­

tion designed to further tppedltIlt’s poCitictl 

goals, " Was not a bizarre crime whose very character 

pointed to dissolutCin of the accused's ddliberatide • 

faculties.”’ Id., 167. Compare the parricide,. matti- ’ 

ci.de, and inf antic cdde of Wooff, Goedecke, Nicolaus, ’

and Basseet. Connrasting People v. Ford, 65 Cal. 2d 41, 

cert. denied, 385 U.S. 1018, the Court in Coogler further 

noted the lack of evidence suggesting that the "defend-- 

ant behaved in an abnnr•mtl or irratContl manner during 

the actual commission of the crimes," and t;he same 

is true here. '

Peopev. Coogler, supra at 167.

All the inn-cCiiictl evidence in the present 

case lends further support to the con<clusi.on that
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V V
appellant had the capacity to harbor malice afore­

thought and to deliberate and reflect maaurely and 

meeanntfully upon the-gravity of the political lnsaSc 

sination which he contemplated: his purchase of the 

murder weapon almost six months prior to the assas- 

sinltion, his staeements of intention to the garbage 

collector and in his notebooks, his poHtloH mooiva- 
tton, his stalking of Senator Kennnly—clonely flow­

ing his whereabouts in Oregon and Walhlngtin, his ■ 

trips to the shooting range and visit to the 

Ambassador Hooel two days prior to the assassination, 

and his conduct (and non-intoxicated condition) 

immeedately prior to, during, and subsequent to the 
19/ • ■ ■ .

assassination itself-.
It also bears meetion that appellant 

concedes that the jury "was instructed correctly 

under the Conley decision (C.T. 283-91))”’ (App« Op. 

Br. p. 409)) Significantly the instructs on mental

19/ Contrary to appellant (App. Op. Br. p. 
389),,. respondent does not find supportive of the claim 
of diminished capacity lpppllltt’n "game playingwhile 
the police attempted, to interoogate him, his kicknng a 
cup of coffee out of the hands of one officer, and his 
caution in drinking any beverage offered him by the 
police. Apppllant's ability to iden^y an absent 
officer by the officers badge number, 3949» and. his 
play'on words with Sergeant Jordi’s name at a time 
when Jordan was attempting to ascertain lppillltt s 
name and place of origin, are instead indicative of a 
highly ra^onal and sober individual. (Rep. Tr. pp.

_5951, 6104, 6108-09.) . • ' .
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V
capacity were not only correct statements of the law 

but were given, with only a couple of minor exceptions, 

at the request of the defense. People v. Nye, 63 Cal. 

2d 166, 173. They aioowed the jury to consider as 

possiiilittes firtt-tegtte murder, .second-degree murder,- 

manslaughter, and total acquital by reason of uncon­

sciousness.. (C1. Tr. pp. 275-93; Rep. Tr. pp. 8795­

8805.) Appetlasi had the defense of diminished capacity, 

arising from mental disease, intoxica^on., or any • .

other cause such as organic defect, presented to the 

jury in numerous isstruitOoss, -and the jury had ample '

evidence upon which to reject such a defense. Thus . 

totally inapposite are the cases cited by appellant 

in 'which reversible error is premised upon a defense 
having been wproperly withheld from the jury’s con- 

sidtrctOos by the tribal court’s giving, or failnng ■ 

to give, a particular instruction. (App. Op. Br. 

pp. 406-10.) . ■

Cf-.P^v. Camillo, 70 Cal. 2d 264, 270; 

People v. CoSty, 64 Cal. 2d 310, 319-20; 

People v. Henderson, 60 Cal. 2d 482, 490-91. 

. §££ also ^ople v. Goodridge, 70 Cal. 2d 824, •

837; ■

. People v. Fain, 70 Cal. 2d 588, 599-600.
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Respondent submits that there was clearly 

sufficient subssannial evidence to estabbiss appel­

lant’s capacity to commit murder with malice afore­

thought, and in particular to establish appeeiant’s 

capacity to premedi-tate and deliberate trrst-degree 

murder maturely and meaanngfully with reflection 

upon the consaquancas of the assassinatoon which 

appellant had contemplated for months.. .

111
THE SEARCH OF APPELLANT’S BEDROOM 
AND THE SEIZURE OF TRASH FROM THE 
AREA BEHIND THE SIRHAN RESIDENCE 

WERE LAWFUL '

Apppeiant contends that the guarantee against 

unreasonable searches and seizures contanned in the 

Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments to .the federal 

ConstStuSOonJ and articee I, section 19 of the ' 

California CoostSSuSOog was violaeed (1)' by the taarch 
of his bedroom, which recovered the notebooks, 

portions of which were received in evidence over 

his objection (Rep. Tr. pp. 4356-58), and (2) by the 

teSzur'e of the envelope bearing apppellit•s hand­
writing and sha return address of the Argonaut 

Insurance Company, which envelope was also received 

s-n evidence over hs.s objection (Rep. Tr. pp. 4354-56,
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4359, 4397-4401). (App. Op. Br. pp. 426, 457.) The 

contents of the notebooks are in part set forth at 

pages 26-28, 50-54, infra, and the handwrrtnng from the 

envelope at pages 25-26, infra.

’ A. Appellant Is Precluded From Chaalenging 
the Propriety of the "Trial • Courts---------- 
Rulings, Admiitnng i.n Evidence the Notebooks 
and the Envelope Recovered From the Trash, 
by the Fact That All but' Five Sheets of the 
Notebooks Were Put in Evidence by the-----------  
Defense and the Entire Notebooks as^eel 
as tihe Enve^-ope Were Used by the Defense

■ as Proof of Diminihhed Mental Capacity—

Prior to reaching the mints of appellant's 

present claim of error, respondent disputes the right 

of appellant to urge as error the admission in evi­

dence of the notebooks and the envelope recovered from 

the trash area, as the products of allegedly unlawful 

searches and seizures.

Only five sheets of the notebooks (Exhs.

71-15, 71-35, 71-39, 71-47, & 72-125)'. were put in 

evidence by the prosecution (Rep. Tr. p. 4363); the 

remaining pages, comieising the-vast majority of the 

not;ebooks, were put i.n evidence by the defense. '

(Rep. Tr. pp. 4955, 5095, 5191.) SigMfleantly some

of these pages offered by the defense were substanMally 
more damaging than those portions offered by the
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prosecution, from the standpoint of showing appellant's 

praise of communism and hatred toward this country, 

stated in occasionaiyy profane tesss, and appeelant's 

expression of willingness, to resort to political assas­

sination. (Rep. Tr. pp. 4987-91, 4994-95, 5009-11, 

5018; Exhs. 71-1-9 through 25, 71-34, 71-39.) 0ne 

of the pages offered by the defense, cOntaining the 

foliowinn language, had been kept out of evidence .

on objection of the defense when the prosecution had 

sought to have it admitted (Rep. Tr. pp. 3608-10, 

4365-69):
"I advocate the overthrow of the 

current president of the fuckon United '

States of Ameeica. I have no absolute .

plains yet, but soon will compose som^ ’

■ ... I firmly support the communst cause

and its'people — wether [sic] Russian, 

Chineese [sic], Albanian, Hungarian or who­

ever—Workers of the world unite, you have 

nothing to loose [sic] but your chains, 

and a world to win." (Exh. 72-1233 & 124 

(emphasis in original); Rep. Tr. pp. 5095­

96.) •

This is not a situatoon where aepellait could
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properly claim that the conduct .of the search, or. 

the prosecution’s intooductoon in evidence of five 

sheets of the seized notebooks, somehow comppeled 
him to offer the remaining, even more damaging, _ 

portions of the notebooks. . : .

See People v.. Quicke, 71 Cal. 2d 502, 518;

Symons v. Klinger, 372 F.2d 47, 49 (9th Cir.
20/ 

1967), cert. denied, 386 U.S. 1040.

It is weel settled that on appeal objection may not 

be made by a defendant to the admission of evidence 

inrroUuced by the defendant, People v. Feldkamp, 51 

Cal. 2d 237, 241, or admitted pursuant to his stipu- 

latoon. . .

People v. Foster, 67 Cal. 2d 604, 606.

The defense’s decision to offer i_n evidence 

the refining portoons ^f the notebooks, if compeled 

by anything, was humipeled by thie defense’s own 

decision to offer evidence of diminished mental capacity. 

Thus the defense psychiaarists examined the entire 

contents of the notebooks prior to trial and based

20/ See also Lockrdgge v. Suppeior Couut,
3 Cal. 3d 166, 170, cert. denied, U.S. , 39
U.S.L.W. 3455; People v. Tiffith, 12 Cal. App. 3d 1129, 
1136; People v. Wright, 273 Cal. App. 2d 325, 338-40;
People v. Green, 236 Cal. App. 2d 1, 25-26, cert. 
deni.ed, 390 U.S. 971.
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V
their testimony, regarding appellant’s asserted lack of 

ability topreieedtate, on what they took to'be 

appeHant’s mental condition as refected by the 

notebook entries and the writing on the envelope 

. recovered from the trash area. It cannot be. ’ •
doubted that even had the prosecution not put. 

in evidence the five notebook sheets and the 

envelope, defense counsel would have-offered, in evi­

dence the entire notebooks and the-envelope, and 

argued strenuously to the jury, as they ultimate^ did, 

that this evidence lstailished aepellait's lack of the 

requisite mental capacity. ’

See People v. Devaney, 7 Cal. App. 3d 736, 745­

47 (the defendant’’ testimony, which rendered 

harmless the improper admission of a con- • ‘ 

■ fession, was held not to have been impelled 

by the confession but rather by the defend­

ant’s desire to establish his defense of 

diminished mental capaacty.) 

Respondent submits that for the foregoing • 

re^ns appellant is preceded from chaieengnng the 
propriety of the trial court's ruinng admitting in 

evidence the notebooks and the envelope.
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B. The Search of Appellant's Bedroom and the ' 
Seizure of His Notebooks, Without a Search 
Warrant, Was Proper in Light of the PressTng 
Emergency to Ascertain the Exisennee of a • 

' Possible Conspiracy, Appe^ant's Concealment
of Hi’ Identity and Refusal to Discuss the 
Shooting Giving Rise to a Reasonable 
Apprehension of the Imminent Assassination 
of Other High Government Officials" :

The circumstances underlying the authooitHs’ 
decision to search the Sirhan residence are fully set 

forth at pages 20-22, 29-35, infra, and only those 

facts having an immediate bearing on- the apppica.- 

bility of the "emergency circumstnnces" doctrine will 
• be repeated here. •

When the dlc:ls-0oe to search was made on 

the morning of June 5, 1968 .(subsequent to the .shoot- 

■ ing but prior Ito the death of Senator Kennedy), appel­

lant had not yet identified hius.elf to the police ,

°r_given them Ms a^ress or any identiyynng in- •

formation. (Rep. Tr. pp. .115-16.) He carried no •

idmtificatoon paper’s on his per’son at the time of 

his arrest. (Rep. Tr. pp. 3522-23.) A)ePl^,S 

identity remained unknown .from the tine he was taken 

iMo custody at approx^ae^ 12:15 a.m. uantl.

■ officers of the Los Angel.es Police Department . '

arrived at tie Pasadena Police Station at approxi-. • 

uately 9:30 that morning "tto interveew a per’son [who]
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possibly could name the identity of the person who 

shot Senator Kenney.11 At that time they had'a ■ 

conversation with Adel Sirhan. (Rep. Tr.-pp. 54-56, 

59, 90-91, 94-95.) Adel had gone to the police .
station shootly after hie and his brother Munir had 

seen appeeiant’s picture in the newspaper in 

conjunctoon with the shooting of Senator Kennedy. 

(Rep. Tr. pp. 103-04.) Ade]., like apppeiant, must • 

have appeared t° be a foreigner, and Adel stated that 

his father was in a foreign country. (Rep. Tr.

p. 92.) Adel commmuicated to the police his beiief 

that appellant was involved in the'shooting' of ' 1 

Senator Kennedy and told them that appellant resdded 

at the Sirhan resddenee located at 696 East Howard- 

in Pasadena. (Rep. Tr. p. 60.) • .

Without obtaining a search warrant, the 

offices proceeded to the Sirhan residence, arrivnng 

there at approximately 10:30 a.m. Their purpose in 
going there was ”[t]o determine whether or not 

there was anyone el.se involved" in the.shooting and. 

also "to determine whether or not there were any 

other thnngs that would be relatiee to the crime." 

(Rep. Tr. pp. 4273-75.) They "were looking for 

leads or other possible suspects" and "were interested
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in evidence of possible conspiracy in that there 

might be other people that were not yet in custody." 

(Rep. Tr. pp. 75-77, 4313.)

- It has long been recogniedd that "[^eeee 

are exceptional cirummsannces in which, on balancing 

the need for effective law enforcement against the 

right of privacy, it may be contended that a magis­

trate’s warrant for search may be dispensed with.” 

Johnson v. United States, 333 U.S. 10, 14-15. In 

McDonald v. United States, 335 U.S. 451, 454­

56, the United S^tes Supreme Court recognized that 

"compeeiing reasons,1’ a "grave emergency," or 

"the exigencies .of the situation” may Justly the ' 

search of a resieence without a warrant; Relying 

on the foregoing language iLn McDonald, the court in ‘ 

Warden v. Hayden, 387 U.S. 294, 298-300, .sustained 

the search of an entire' two-story house and cellar by 

offccers who were in pursuit of a suspected armed 

felon who had entered the house several minutes be­
fore they arrived.

Seeal^We v. Louisiana, 399 U.S. 30, 34-35; 
Chime, v. California, 395 U.S. 752, 761;- 

United States v. Jeffers, 342 U.S. 48, 51-52.

Chief Justice Burger-, when sitting on the
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United Statues Court of Appeals, stated the princi­

ple succinctly: '

"The need to protect or preserve' 

■ lffe or avoid serious injury is jusSifi-

cation for what would, be otherwise illegal • 

absent an exigency or emergency. ...” 

Wne v. United States, 318 F.2d 205, 212 • 

(D.C. Cir. 1963), cert. 'denied, 375 U.S. 
.860. •

This Court reieed on the McDonald case in 

sustaining the search in People v. Gilbert, 63 Cal. 

2d 690, vacated on other grounds,.388 U.S. 263, 

stating that a "search without a warrant is reason­

able whenit is . . . justifeed by a pressing emer­

gency.” Id. , 706. There the "offieers identified 

Gilbert and found out where he lived less than two. 

hours after the robbery." Id. Entering without a 

warrant "in fresh pursuit to search for a suspect 

and make an arrest," the offers found the apart­

ment unoccupied but noticed, among other leems, a., 

notebook on a coffee table with a dr’a.wi.ng of the 

bank that had been robbed as well as an envelope 

from a photography studio containing a photograph 
of the defendant Gilbert. The photograph was
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later shown to bank employees for identification.

Id., 706-07. ■ •

This Court held that the "exigent iircim-. 

stances" justiiedd the search and seizure, and that 

"[wjhile the officers were looking through the apaat- 

ment for their suspect they could properly examine 

suspicious objects in plain sight. . , [Citation.] '

Moreover, they could properly.look thoough.the apart­

ment for anything that cend be used to identify the 
21/ suspects er to expeddte the puussuf." .

People v. Gilbert, supra at 707.

Similarly in People v. Smith., 63 Cal. 2d 

779, cert, denied, 388 U.S. 913, this Court.upheld 

the officers’ search of a resdennce in pursuit of 

a dangerous suspect;, "for the suspect or for any evi­

dence ^f the su'sPect»s having been there and gone." 
The Court held that having, ascertained that t;he 

suspect was absent, tiw police were not "requieed at 

that point t;o abandon their search for [him] or his 

true identity. . . . Whhle in the house, it was

21/ The United States Supreme Court found 
that the facts do not a.ppear with sufficeent clarity t;o 
^1€! us to decide" the appPiiability of the "so-called 
hot pursuut’ and ’exigent iiruuistanies’ exceptions" to 

the warrant requieement. Gilbert v. California. 388 U.S. 
263, 269. -------------- --------------------,
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not unreasonable for the officers to look about 

them for evidence that would identify the suspect 

. . . or that would enable them to pick up his 

trail." Id., 797-98.

See also People v. Terry, 70 Cal. 2d 410, ’

424, cert. denied, 399 U.S. 911;

Tompkins v. Supeeior Coout, 59 Cal. 2d 65, 69.

Analogous are the cases in Which the 

emergency circumstances doctrine is invoked to justify 

a search or entry mooivated by a police officers 

exercise of his duty to protect liee or render, emeer. 

gency aid to a victim.

See People v. Roobets, 47 Cal. 2d 374, 377-850 

(entry of officers in response -to moaning 

sounds);

People v. Suppeior Couut, 6 Cal. App. 3d 379, 

’ 381-83 (pursuit of injueed'bomber who 

was beleeved to possess another, unex- 

' ploded bomb); .

’ People v. Neth, 5 Cal. App'. 3d 883, 887-88 

(offers summoned to aid per’son in 

need of immeddate medical attention be­

cause of overdose of LSD); ■

People v. Robinson, 269 Cal. App. 2d 789, 791­
92 (sear’ch of premises from which shots
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had been fired, injuring an infant);

Romero v. Superior Court, 266 Cal. App. 2d 714, 

718-19 (search for further explosives at 

' scene of explosion "for the protection of

the inhabitants . . . and also the nearby 

property owners"); .

People v. Clark, 262 Cal. App. 2d 471, 475-77 

(probaaility that a woman within the searched 

apartment was the unwilling victim of a 

criminal act);

People v. Roman, 256 Cal. App. 2d 656, 659 

(entry of officer din child-beatnng inves- 

tigatoon upon observing victim- unconscious 
on floor);

People v. .Bauer, 241 Cal. App. 2d 632, 646-47 

(necessity to attempt to render meddcal 

assistance to victim who might still be 

alive); -

People V. Gomez, 229 Cal. App. 2d 781, 782-83 

(search of.pockets of unconscious, con­
vulsive mooooist in attempt to identify 

him for purpose of obtaining medical 
' assistance);

People v. Gonzales, 182 Cal. App. 2d 276, 279
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(similar search of wounded motorist in 

. state of shock).

. See also Schnerber v. California, 384 U.S. 757, 

770-71 (taking a blood sample from intoxi­

cated motorrst); ' . .

• People v. Maxwell, 275 Cal. App. 2d Supp. 1026, 

1029 (governmental interest in immediate .

inspection for fssh would be frustrated by

, delay). •

Similarly in People v. Modesto, 62 Cal. 2d 436, this 

Court upheld the admission of certain staeements made 

by the defendant "at a time when the offceers were 

concer>iee>d primarily with the posssiility of saving 

Connie’s 1H. The paramount interest in .saving her 

lHe, if possible, clearly .justiieed the offieers in 

not impeding their' rescue efforts by inroiming defend­

ant-of his rights." Id., 446.

See also People v. Miller, 71 Cal.'2d 459, 
481-82; ' ■

People v. Jacobson, supra, 63 Cal. 2d 319, 328. 

Referring to the "doctrine of neceesity,’’ 

this Court gave renewed. recognition to these principles 

in the recent case of Horack v. Supprior Couut, 3 Cal. 

3d 720, 725, quoting with approval the folding
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language from the Roberts decision': "’[necessity often 
justifies an action which would otherwise constitute a

trespass, at where the act i.t prompted by the motive of 

•preserving lie or ’property and reasonably appears to 

tie actor to be necessary for that purpose.’” •
A competing justification for the doctrine 

was expritted in People v. Su^elor Couut, supra, where 

the Court of Appeal noted:

"One way of testnng the reasonable- .

ness of the search is to.ask ourselves.’ 

what the situaton would have looked like • 

had another bomb exploded, iilinng a . 

number of people and perhaps Puliami .

.hipstdi, whlAe offers were explaining 

the maater to a mmggstrate

Id.,, 6 Cal. App. 3d at- 382. .

. See also People v. J•uhntun, 15 Ca.l. App. 3d • 

936, 939-41. .

' Similarly in the case at bar the police

officers were legitimately concerned with immeddately . 

asceetaining wheth^ iu-ionspiratots in the shooting 

of Senator Kennedy were at large, and if so, whether 

. thw attack on Senator Kennedy was but the first round 

in a plot to assassinaee a number of Presidential
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candidates or other high government officials. The 

refusal of appeeiant, an apparent foreigner, to discuss 

his identity, his’country of origin, or the shooting, 

his carrying of no identifCcato-on, and his engaging in 

evasive verbal, fencing with his interoogators, were . 

facts suppootive of the p°lice’s concern that other 

assassinations might be imminent. '

It is not diffccult to envisage what would 

have been the effect on the nation and its government 

of two or three more assassinatoons at .’that. time.■ The 

"gravity of the offense" was a factor that the offceers 

could properly take into account.

Brinegar v. United States, 338 U.S. 160, 

. 183 (Jackson, J., dissenting), 

quoted wi’h approval in Pgople v. Scw, 
62 Cal. 2d 716, 724. •

See also People V. Smth; supra, 63 Cal.. 2d 779, 

797; ; ■

' People v. Johnson, supra, 15 Cal. App. 3d 936, .
• 941. ’

In annidation of the Ikkelioood that 

appellant will deprecate the exigences confrontngg 

the authoritess at the time of the search, conducted 

some ten ho^rsa’ter the shooting, respondent
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emphas izes the fact, (of which this Court may .take 

judicial notice under Evidence Code sections '451(f)-, 

459) that- only two months previously Reverend Martin 

Luther King, Jr., had been assassinated, and less 

than five year’s previously, the victim’s brother, • 

President John F. Kennedy. Moreover, the timing of 

the shooting must have had signffiaance to the 

authooities, coming as it did only minutes after the 
announcement of Senator Kennedy’ victory in the 

strongly contested California primary electoon which 

placed him in top contention for the Demmocaaic 

nomination for President of the United States.

It was eminennly reasonable, for the .

offccers to view as seridus -the .possible threat of a • 

conspiracy to assassinaee a number of high government 

officials, and to view the notebooks as a possible 

lead to other connsirators. To paraphrase the court’s 

opinion in People v. Sup^ior Couut, supra, 6 Cal. App,. 

3d 379, "Oan way of testing the reasonableness of the 
search is to ask ourselves what the situation would 

have looked like had another [assassination occurred] 

. . . , while offccers were explaining the matter .

to a mmaissrate." Id., 382. '

Respondent submits that the present case ’
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comes within the principles set forth in the afore­

mentioned cases upholding warrantless searches 

conducted under immediate need to protect or pre­

serve life or in pursuit of dangerous suspects.
As recently held by the United- States .

■ Supreme Court,

’When judged in accordanee-with 

’the factual and practical consideratonns 

of everyday liee on which reasonable and 

•prudent men, not legal technicians, act,’ 

Brine-gar v. United States, 338 U.S. 160, 

175 (1949), the . . . search was reason- .

able and valid under the Fourth Amendmeen-.'"

Hill v. Caalfornia,  U.S. ,

• , 39 U.S.L.W. 4402, 4405 (Appil 5,

1971) . . . '
In part appelant’s contentoon relating to 

the search of the Sirhan resdennee is also couched in 

temms of an asserted violatoon of the Fifth and 

Fourteenth Amendments' proecriptOin against compul- 
22/ 

sory eelf-incrieinatOon. , (App. Op. Br. pp. 446-48.)

• Rleiundlnt submits that there is no meit ■

22/ Contrary to the defendant in Hill v. 
Cdifemia, su^ra,  U.S. __ , ___, 39 U.S.L.W. 
4402, 4405 (AapH 5, 1971), Where the United States
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V
in appellant’s apparent claim that the nature of the 

seized property as paper’s somehow accords them a 

preferential status as Hems immune from search and 

seizure. ■

It has long been settled that: 

■ "There is no special sanctity in 

papers-, as disttiguSshed fooe other foems 

of property, to render them immune fo.om 

search and seizure, if only they fail 

within the scope of the principles of the 

cases in which other property may be . ■ 

seized ■

Goulrd V. United States, 255 U.S. 298, 309. 

See also Abe.l v. United States, 362 U.S. 217, 

■ ' 238-40. * .

Since the rejection in Warden v. Hayden, supra,. 387 

U.S. 294, 300-01, 307-08, of the "mere evidence" 

rule, documentary evidence has not been accorded any

Suprmme Court refused to consider the question, appel­
lant appeal’s to have ’pe^fi-cally raised this issue 
bel.ow. (C1. Tr. pp. 416-26.) The Fifth Amendment
aspects of appellant’s cohtentoon are considered here, 
rather- than under the subargumint deainng with the 
cihi^htual justiiCcatiot for the search, b.cau’. H 
must be assumed that if-Adel Sirhen could effective! 
waive aepellant's Fourth Amendment rights; hr could 
also waive aepellant*s Fifth Amenclmrnt rights.
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greater protection against invasion of privacy than 
other forms of evidence.

See also People v. Thayer, 63 Cal. 2d 635, 
cert. denied, 384 U.S. 908.

As was held in this Court’s unanimous 

opinion in Thayer, 

"Finally, it should be noted that 

there are sore opinions that construe Gouled 

v. United States to protect privacy by pre­

serving private papers, such as a personal 

diary, fror any seizure. [Citing cases-.]

■ This coniSructioi its contrary to the opinion 

of the court in Gouled . . . .." Id., 64 2-43.

. See also People v. Hill, 69 Cal. 2d 550, 

552, affd,  U.S. , 39 U.S.L.W. . 
4402 (April 5, 1971); ■ '

PeoPle v. Tiffihh, supra-, 12 Cal. App. 3d 1129, 

. 1136-37, quoting Stroud v. United States,

251 U.S. 15, 21-22. ,
Respondent submits that appmant’s note­

books were ptopetly received in evidence in view of 

the exi.genci.es confronting the police on the rii’ning 

of June 5, 1968. 

/ . -

/
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c. ■ Appellant's Brother, Adel, the Oldest ■ 
Male Member of the Sirhan Houselold, Gave 
a VO-i-d Consent to the Search of the 
House, Including Apeeelant's Bedroom.

As previously noted, the ciCummstances under­

lying the authhoities’ decision to search the Sirhan 

resddence are fully set forth at pages 20-22', 29­

35, infra, and only those facts having an immediate 

bearing on the validity of the consent to the search 

given by Adel Sirhan will be repeated here. .

. Adel went to the Pasadena Police Station-

shortly after he and his brother Munir had seen 

aepeelant’s picture in the newspaper.in conjunctoon 

with the shooting of Senator Kennedy. (Rep. Tr. pp. 

103-04.) At that time the' authorities were totally' 

unaware of aepellatt’s identity. (Rep. Tr. pp. 94­

95, 115-16.)

When the Los Angel.es police offccers 

arrived at the pasadetla station, they idettifedd 

themselves to Adel, who gave his name and agreed 

to speak to the offccers after being advised of his 

connsitutional right to counsel and to remain silent, 

and after waiving these rights. Adel was inoommed that 

Hhe didn’t have to cooperate with us or speak with 

us in any manner" and that "he was n^t under arrest."
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(Rep. Tr. pp. 57-58, 91-92, 107-08.)

Adel informed the offCeers that he was the 

oldest of the brothers living at the'Sirhan residence' 

at 696 East H^ard in Pasadena, that his mother and ■ 

two younger brother, appellant and Munir, were part 

of the household, and that his father was in a 

foreign country. Adel "probably" told the offCeers • 

hisage. (Rep. Tr. pp. 59-60, 64, 92, 4314.) His 

age was 29 years. (Rep. Tr. p. 114.) Appellant’s 

age was 24, and Munnr’s 21. (Rep. Tr. pp. 120, 4664.)

When asked whether the offCeers "could

search the home," Adel replied that "as far as he 

was concerned [the officers] could, however it was 

his mother’s house." The offceers then asked Adel 

whet^r "he would call his moth^ for permission and 

he indicated he would eolfeo that [they] did not 

talk to his mother at that tire;” she was at work, 

and "he iii not want [the officers] to alarm her with 

what had happened because she did not yet know about 

it. " Adel never said that he had no right to give
23/

the police permission to enter the house. (Rep. To. 
pp. 61, 80, 93.) ’

23/ At tie pretrial hearing Adel testifeddi-n accord with the above-iescI’beid testimony of the 
p??06 “firs. .Headm^d having been advised °f 
his conntitutional rights and tellnng the ^fic^s,
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V
' One of the officers, Sergeant Brandt, was 

advised by teeephone, by Lieutenant Hughes of 

Rampart Detectives, that the Sirhan resdeenee should 

be s^rched in the event Adel had given his consent. 

(Rep. Tr. pp. 61-62.) Although'Munir denied this, at 

the pretrial hearing, he too (Muner) had given his 

consent that morning at the police station to a 

search of tiw Sirhan residence after- having been 

advise of his coneSitntioea■l right to Cfnesel and to 

remain silent, and after waiving these rgghts. Munnr 

was aOo informed "that he was not under arrest." 

(Rep. Tr. pp. 62, 98-100, 119-25, 130-31.)

• The Sirhan residence consisted of three 

bedrooms, a livnng room, a den, and a dining room. 

Mrs. Sirhan owned the house and had a deed to it. 

(Rep. Tr. p. 112.) Adel was a part owner of the 

ProPerty uni]. August of 1963, when he and his mother

"’I have nothing to hide, but the house isn't mine, I 
do not own the house.’” Adel.had told the offccers 
that his mother owned the house, that she knew nothing 
about the mater, and that he did not "want her dis- 
turh^" at work. Adel told the offCcers "I had no 
fb;)ectioe" to the house being searched and that "’It 
is okay with me,’" and he said efthing further on the 
subject.. (Rep. Tr. pp. 105-09.) Mrs. Sirhan tesst-■
fied at the hearing that she had never given Adel or 
anyone else permission to search any room of the ' 
house. (Rep. Tr. p. 113.) .
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joined in deeding the property to Mrs. Sirhan as sole 

owner. (Rep. Tr. p. 127.) Apppeiant did not pay room 

or board. (Rep. Tr. p. 2456.)

Adel admitted the officers to the house 

upon arriving with them at approximately 10:30 a.m/ ' 

(Rep. Tr. p. 42^3.) No one else was home at the time. 

(Rep. Tr. pp. 87, 4309.) He unlocked the door and 

let the officers in. (Rep. Tr. pp. 62-63.) The , 

officers did not. have a search warrant and had not 

made an a^empt to secure' the consent of appellant 

to enter and search. (Rep. Tr. pp. 4274-75.) Adel 

gave them permission to search appeeiant’s bedroom. 

(Rep. Tr. pp- 4313-14.) He showed them- where it was 

located, at the rear of the residence. Sergeant 

Brandt then searched the bedroom in the presence of 

the other offc-cers and Adel. (Rep. Tr. pp. 64, 75,
4273, 4278, 4309.) ■

At the time he conducted the search, 

Sergeant Brandt beieeved that Adel was a person 

authorized to consent to a search of the Sirhan resi­

dence. (Rep. Tr. pp. 75-76.)

This Court has long recognieed "the rule 

that a search is not unreasonable if made with the 

consent of a cooccupant of the premises who, by virtue 

of his rclat■iinshep or other factors, the offceers
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reasonably and in good faith beieeve has authority - 

to consent to their entry. [Citnng cases.]" 

(Emphasis added.)

People-v. Smith, supra, 63 Cal. 2d 779, 799.

See also People v. McGrew, 1 Cal, 3d 404, 4’2­

13, cert. denied, 398 U.S. 909;

People v. Hill/ supra, 69 Cal. 2d 550, 554, 

affd, ___  U.S., , 39 U.S.L.W. 4402 

(Appil 5, 1971). ’

It has always been the case that "’[t]he 

recurring questions of the reasonableness of searches’ 

depend upon ’the facts and ciccumstances—the total 

atmosphere of the case.’" ’

ChjieL v. California, supra, 395 U.S. 752, - 
' . 765; .

Uiited Statues v. Rabinowitz, 339 U.S. 56, " 
63, 66.

Thus in Hi-1 V. California, supra,  U.S. 

, 39 U.S.L.W. 4402 (April 5, ’97’), the United

States Supreme Court upheld a sear-ch of the defendant’s 

apartment incident to the arrest of a man whom the ’ . 

arrestnng officers mistakenly took to be the defend­

ant. The Court held,

"They were quite wrong as it turned out,
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and subjective good-faith belief would not 

in itself justify either the arrest or the 

subsequent search. But sufficient proba­

bility, not certainty, is the touchstone of

■ reasonableness under the Fourth Amendment '

and on the record before us the officers’- 

mistake was understandabee and the arrest a 

reasonable response to the situation facing 

them at the time." Id.,  U.S. at , 39 

U.S.L.W. at 4404. ’ • .

Relying on Brinegar v. United States, supra, 338 U.S. 

160, 175, the’Court upheld the arrest and search as 

reasonable and valid "[wjhen judged in accordanee 

with ’the factual and practical consi-erations of 

everyday life on which reasonable and prudent men, 

not legal technicians, act/' Id.,  U.S. at , 

39 U.S.L.W. at 4405. ' ' .

’ The issue at hand is thus whether the triLal 

court properly concluded that the ifficers who searched 

the Sirhan res-eence obtained a valid consent from 

Adel Sirhan, and if not, whether they reasonably and' ' 

in good faith beieeved that Adel had authority under 

the ciruumstances to consent to the search in question.

Twice, at the hearing on the'motion to
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suppress pursuant to Penal Code section 1538.5. and 

again at the triLal, the trial court, after

”... reviewing ail the evidence'and the •

arguments and the briefs, was of the opinion 

’ that the offCcers had authority from the 

one whom they conscientiously and reasonably 

believed to be the. one who could grant the 

authority. • . •

"Therefore . . . there was consent;."

(Rep. Tr. p. 4358; see also Rep. Tr. pp. . 

136-37.)

The.^solution of conflicting evidence, 

presented at a hearing' on motion to suppress 

evidence involve the issue of consent to search, . 

lees with, the superior court and will not be distubeed 

where there is subssannial evidence supporting the 

finding of that court. People v. Welt, 3 Cal. 3d 595, 

602. The same is Inrue with respect to the determi­

nation of the tissue of consent by the court at the 

time of trial; this Court will not subssitute its 

Judgment for that of the trial court, which heard and 

observed the witnesses who testiieed on this question. 

■ Peope. V. Carrillo, 64 Cal. 2d 387, 390-91,
- cert. deiiee, 385 U.S. 1013.
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The propriety of the triLal court’s ruling 

is supported by recent case law, and, as will be 

shown, the cases cited by appellant are all readily 

distinguSshable. • '

In its recent decision in Frazier v. Cupp, 

394 U.S. 731, 740, the United States Supreme Court 

recognized the conssitutional validity of a consent 
given by one joint possessor of a duffel bag to a 

search of the bag, including that pontoon allegedly 

occupied by the property of- the defendant. Slmilarly 

thls Court in People, V. tag., 45 Cal. 2d 776,- upheld 
the consent to a search of a room occupied by the 

defendant;, a boarder, given by the home owner, who 

beieeved that he had at least 

joint contr°l over [defendants] quar­

ts and the* right t;o enter them . . . 

and authorize a search t;hereof. Under 

these cicumistances the officers wer>e 

j^tified in conclude that [the home’ 

owner] had the authority over his home that 

he purported to have . . . .11 Id., 783. 

— as° People V. Caartativo, 46 Cal. 2d 68, 
73, cert^ denied, 351 U.S. 972 (same); 

people V. prance, 12 Cai. 4pp. 3d 935, 942-45
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(upholding the validity of a consent given 

' by a person in whose custody the defendant 

had entrusted Ms personal property). -

Tompkins v. Supprior Court, supra, 59 Cal. 2d. 

65, cited by'appellant, merely held that

'”. . . one joint occupant who is away 

from the premises may not authorize police 

officers to enter and search the premises 

over the objection of another joint occu­

pant who is -pinsent at the time, at Hast ■ 
where as in this case, no prior warning is 

given, no emergency exists, and the officer 

fails even to discosse his purpose to the 

occupant who is present or to inroii him

■ thot he has the consent of.the absent occu­
pant to enter. . . Id., 69. ■

Similarly distnggusshab!e is People v. Cruz, 61 Cal. 

2d 861, where instead of seeki.ng consent from the 

defendant;, who tos present, to search certain suit­

cases, the officers searched through various Umms, 

including the defendann’s suit;case, which they knew 

neither belonged to, nor had been entrusted to, the 

custody of a tenant of the apartment from whom a 

purported consent had been obtained^ Id., 866-67.

227.



The case of People v. Egan, 250 Cal. App. 

2d 433, cited by appe.llant, lends support to respond­

ent's ^sition. Although holding that the defendant's 
stepfather could not give consent to the search of 

a "kit bag" to which he had no possessory right or 

control, the court made it clear that the stepfather 

could consent to "a search of any depository owned 

and controlled by him as part of the household furniture 

and fumishnngs.11 Id.., 436. The court noted that '

the defendant paid "[njo rent or other remuneration '
24/ 

. . . for his occupancy." Id., 434.

^.J'he other_ cases cied by appellant are 
s^TAry disbnggushhable. In People v. Murillo, 241 
S’ A^* 2d 173>.the court upheld the right of the 
defend* Js, mistress, an informer, to consent to a 
search of their jointly occupied apartment but not to a 
search.of the defendants attache’' case. 'People V. Fry 
271 Cal. Acp.>2d 350, which-respondent submits i.s J
at Vafa^06.-^ dlClsO>tlS of this Court and the Courts 
0LA?Pelal, tlYerthlllss is distnggushhable in that 

ere the officers had knowledge that the defendant's 
?nfe4 whos\iotsen was solicited, had been ^pMcitly 
instr needTby the defendant not to consent. Ip., '
357- CL _In re Lessard, 62 Cal. 2d .497, 504-U5T’upholdine: 
a wi^’s consent to the search of a home 50 tlie p g 
absence 'f/T husband; we V. Linke, 265 Caa. App. 
^duo^3!^’ a-d F>ulegV. gon.g ng Cal. App. 2d 
"n Y26:27 (ov ueed on another eoitt i.n People •
^.n^rty’/7 Ca\. 2d 95 15)’ both upholding a Wife's 
ih2Se^tStbtmda rch of a home over the objection of

, Stoner V’ Caifornia, 376 U.S. 483, held’- . 
thatn^ihe rJghts protected by the Fourth Amendment 
are ^t to be eroded by strained appeiiations of the
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In Vandenberg v. Superior Court, 8 Cal.

App. 3d 1048, the court upheld the search of a 

bedroom occupied jointly by the 19-year-old defendant 

and his father, despite the request of the defendant;,

law of agency or by rnreeaistic doctrness of ’apparent 
authooity”’ (emphasis added)), id., 488, in that case 
the contention that the night clerk of a hotel had 
implied authority from a grest to consent to’ the search 
of the guest's room. At the same time the court ■
implied that a reasonable basis for an officer's con­
clusion of apparent authority would validate a search 
conducted in reiaance thereon. Id., 489. With 
respect to a landlord's right of entry, see also 
Chapman v. United States, 365 U.S. 610, 616-18, but 
compare People v. Suppeior Couut, 3 Cal. App. 3d~648, 
653-60; People v. Rightnour, 243 Cal. App. 2d 663, 668.

In People v. Stage, 7 Cal. App. 3d 681, 683, 
the court recognieed that the consent given by the 
registered owner of a vehicle for a search of the 
vehicle was not a consent to search a'jacket known by 
the officer to belong to one of the other occupants. 
Phis is obviously quite a difeeeent mat;ter from the 
Search of a room aud its ftraishangs■in which a 
defendant such as appellant has no possessory intereSt.

The lictui in Reeves v. Warden, Maryland '
Penntentiary, 346 F.2d 915, 925 (4th Cir. 1965), that 
only the defendant, a guest in his sister' house, 
could consent to a search of the room set aside for 
his u'e, i' clearly erroneous. Respondent does not 
dispute the court’s holdnng that the defendant;' mother, 
also a. guest in the house, lacked authority to give a . 
valid consent to a search of the house, id., 924-25, 
but it is submitted that the sister could properly have 
given consent to a search of the room in question.

/

/

/
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